



16013280

UNITEDSTATES ECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION Washington, D.C. 20549

ANNUAL AUDITED REPORT FORM X-17A-5 PART III

OMB APPROVAL

OMB Number: 3235-0123

Expires: March 31, 2016

Estimated average burden hours per response.....12.00

SEC FILE NUMBER
8-36472

FACING PAGE

Information Required of Brokers and Dealers Pursuant to Section 17 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and Rule 17a-5 Thereunder

| REPORT FOR THE PERIOD BEGINNII | NG01/01/15 | AND ENDING12 | /31/15 |
|--------------------------------|--------------------------------------|---------------------|---------------------------------------|
| | MM/DD/YY | | MM/DD/YY |
| A.] | REGISTRANT IDENTIFIC | CATION | |
| NAME OF BROKER-DEALER: Spec | ctrum Asset Management, | Inc. | OFFICIAL USE ONLY |
| ADDRESS OF PRINCIPAL PLACE OF | BUSINESS: (Do not use P.O. B | ox No.) | FIRM I.D. NO. |
| Two High Ridge Park | | | |
| | (No. and Street) | | |
| Stamford | CT | 00 | 6905 |
| (City) | (State) | (Zi | p Code) |
| NAME AND TELEPHONE NUMBER O | F PERSON TO CONTACT IN I | REGARD TO THIS REPO | ORT |
| | | · (A | Area Code - Telephone Number |
| В. А | CCOUNTANT IDENTIFI | CATION | |
| INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTAI | NT whose opinion is contained in | this Penort* | |
| | oung LLP | rtilis report | |
| | (Name – if individual, state last, f | irst, middle name) | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · |
| 801 Grand Avenue | Des Moines | IA | 50309 |
| (Address) | (City) | (State) | (Zip Code) |
| CHECK ONE: | | | |
| Certified Public Accountar | nt | | |
| ☐ Public Accountant | | | |
| ☐ Accountant not resident in | United States or any of its posse | essions. | ÷ |
| | FOR OFFICIAL USE O | NLY | |
| | | | |
| | | | |



^{*}Claims for exemption from the requirement that the annual report be covered by the opinion of an independent public accountant must be supported by a statement of facts and circumstances relied on as the basis for the exemption. See Section 240.17a-5(e)(2)

OATH OR AFFIRMATION

| I, Jean M. Orlando | , swear (or affirm) that, to the best of |
|--|---|
| my knowledge and belief the accompanying financi Spectrum Asset Management, Inc. | al statement and supporting schedules pertaining to the firm of |
| of December 31 | , 20_15 , are true and correct. I further swear (or affirm) that |
| neither the company nor any partner, proprietor, pr | incipal officer or director has any proprietary interest in any account |
| classified solely as that of a customer, except as foll | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | MOrlele |
| | Signature |
| | // CFO |
| | Title |
| Nous Kolay Notary Public | |
| Motary Public | |
| forms I done | NANCY K DDAY |
| This report ** contains (check all applicable boxes) | NANCY K. DRAY Notary Public |
| ☑ (a) Facing Page.☑ (b) Statement of Financial Condition. | My Commission Expires November 30, 2018 |
| (c) Statement of Income (Loss). | |
| (d) Statement of Changes in Financial Condition | n. |
| (e) Statement of Changes in Stockholders' Equ | |
| (f) Statement of Changes in Liabilities Subordi | nated to Claims of Creditors. |
| (g) Computation of Net Capital. | |
| (h) Computation for Determination of Reserve | Requirements Pursuant to Rule 15c3-3. |
| (i) Information Relating to the Possession or C | |
| | anation of the Computation of Net Capital Under Rule 15c3-1 and the |
| | rve Requirements Under Exhibit A of Rule 15c3-3. |
| consolidation. | naudited Statements of Financial Condition with respect to methods of |
| (1) An Oath or Affirmation. | |
| (m) A copy of the SIPC Supplemental Report. | |
| | s found to exist or found to have existed since the date of the previous audit. |
| (o) Exemption Report | |
| **For conditions of confidential treatment of certain | n portions of this filing, see section 240.17a-5(e)(3). |

Financial Statements and Supplemental Information

Years Ended December 31, 2015 and 2014

Contents

| Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm | 1 |
|--|----|
| Audited Financial Statements | |
| Statements of Financial Condition | 3 |
| Statements of Operations | 4 |
| Statements of Changes in Stockholder's Equity | 5 |
| Statements of Cash Flows | 6 |
| Notes to Financial Statements | 7 |
| Supplementary Information | |
| Schedule I – Computation of Net Capital Under SEC Rule 15c3-1 | 16 |
| Schedule II – Computation for Determination of the Reserve Requirements Under | |
| Exhibit A of SEC Rule 15c3-3 | 19 |
| Schedule III – Information Relating to the Possession or Control Requirements to | |
| SEC Rule 15c3-3 | 20 |



Ernst & Young LLP Suite 3000 801 Grand Avenue Des Moines, IA 50309-2764 Tel: +1 515 243 2727 Fax: +1 515 362 7200

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors
Spectrum Asset Management, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying statements of financial condition of Spectrum Asset Management, Inc. as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, and the related statements of income, changes in stockholder's equity and cash flows for the years then ended that are filed pursuant to Rule 17a-5 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Spectrum Asset Management, Inc. at December 31, 2015 and 2014, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

The accompanying information contained in Schedules I, II and III has been subjected to audit procedures performed in conjunction with the audit of the Company's financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of the Company's management. Our audit procedures included determining whether the information reconciles to the financial statements or the underlying accounting and other records, as applicable, and performing procedures to test the completeness and accuracy of the information. In forming our opinion on the information, we evaluated whether such information, including its form and content, is presented in conformity with Rule 17a-5 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Emst + Young LLP

February 24, 2016

Statements of Financial Condition

| | Decen | iber 31 |
|---|---------------|---------------|
| | 2015 | 2014 |
| Assets | | |
| Cash and cash equivalents | \$ 5,891,385 | \$ 5,939,704 |
| Management fees and commissions receivable: | | |
| Affiliated | 1,357,671 | 1,261,369 |
| Non-affiliated | 5,934,403 | 4,650,107 |
| Fixed assets, net | 147,735 | 229,204 |
| Deferred income tax asset, net | 1,758,426 | 1,443,655 |
| Other assets | 19,200 | 32,697 |
| Total assets | \$ 15,108,820 | \$ 13,556,736 |
| | | |
| Liabilities and stockholder's equity | | |
| Liabilities: | | |
| Accounts payable | \$ 164,942 | \$ 263,963 |
| Accrued compensation | 4,369,327 | 3,647,087 |
| Income taxes payable to affiliates | 286,138 | 2,953,427 |
| Due to affiliates | 693,347 | 567,768 |
| Total liabilities | 5,513,754 | 7,432,245 |
| Stockholder's equity: | | |
| Common stock, no par value – 100,000 shares | | |
| authorized, issued and outstanding | 663,500 | 663,500 |
| Additional paid-in capital | 850,000 | 850,000 |
| Retained earnings | 8,081,566 | 4,610,991 |
| Total stockholder's equity | 9,595,066 | 6,124,491 |
| Total liabilities and stockholder's equity | \$ 15,108,820 | \$ 13,556,736 |

See accompanying notes.

Statements of Operations

| | Year Ended December 31 | | | |
|--|------------------------|------------|----|------------|
| | | 2015 | | 2014 |
| Revenues | | | | |
| Management fees | \$ | 46,164,067 | \$ | 39,281,240 |
| Commissions | | 369,872 | | 831,374 |
| Interest income | | 3,910 | | 3,174 |
| Net realized foreign currency translation losses | | (85,501) | | (430,979) |
| Total revenues | | 46,452,348 | | 39,684,809 |
| | | | | |
| Expenses | | | | |
| Compensation and related expense | | 20,757,963 | | 18,545,785 |
| Other operating expenses | | 4,575,980 | | 3,676,101 |
| Total expenses | | 25,333,943 | | 22,221,886 |
| | | | | |
| Income before income tax expense | | 21,118,405 | | 17,462,923 |
| Income tax expense | | 7,545,175 | | 6,214,053 |
| Net income | \$ | 13,573,230 | \$ | 11,248,870 |

See accompanying notes.

Statements of Changes in Stockholder's Equity

| | | | A | dditional | | Total |
|------------------------------|----|---------|----|-----------|--------------|---------------|
| | (| Common | | Paid-In | Retained | Stockholder's |
| | | Stock | | Capital | Earnings | Equity |
| Balance at January 1, 2014 | \$ | 663,500 | \$ | 895,000 | \$ 3,641,492 | \$ 5,199,992 |
| Net income | | _ | | _ | 11,248,870 | 11,248,870 |
| Return of Capital | | _ | | (45,000) | _ | (45,000) |
| Dividend to parent | | _ | | _ | (10,279,371) | (10,279,371) |
| Balance at December 31, 2014 | \$ | 663,500 | \$ | 850,000 | \$ 4,610,991 | \$ 6,124,491 |
| Net income | | _ | | _ | 13,573,230 | 13,573,230 |
| Dividend to parent | | _ | | _ | (10,102,655) | (10,102,655) |
| Balance at December 31, 2015 | \$ | 663,500 | \$ | 850,000 | \$ 8,081,566 | \$ 9,595,066 |

Statements of Cash Flows

| | Year Ended December 31 | | | |
|--|------------------------|--------------|---------------|--|
| | | 2015 | 2014 | |
| Operating activities | | | | |
| Net income | \$ | 13,573,230 | \$ 11,248,870 | |
| Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash | | | | |
| provided by operating activities: | | | | |
| Depreciation and amortization | | 94,519 | 152,175 | |
| Deferred income taxes | | (314,771) | (1,203,199) | |
| Changes in assets and liabilities: | | | | |
| Management fee and commissions receivable | | (1,380,598) | (1,338,805) | |
| Other assets | | 13,497 | (6,604) | |
| Accounts payable | | (99,021) | 86,254 | |
| Accrued compensation | | 722,240 | (440,255) | |
| Due to affiliates | | 125,579 | 117,168 | |
| Income taxes payable to affiliate | | (2,667,289) | 1,996,230 | |
| Net cash provided by operating activities | | 10,067,386 | 10,611,834 | |
| | | | | |
| Investing activities | | (43.050) | (155.0(0) | |
| Purchases of fixed assets | | (13,050) | (155,869) | |
| Purchase of investments | | (12.050) | (155,060) | |
| Net cash used in investing activities | | (13,050) | (155,869) | |
| Financing activities | | | | |
| Dividend paid to Principal Global Investors, LLC | | (10,102,655) | (10,279,371) | |
| Return of Capital to Principal Global Investors, LLC | | _ | (45,000) | |
| Net cash used in financing activities | | (10,102,655) | (10,324,371) | |
| | | | | |
| Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents | | (48,319) | 131,594 | |
| Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year | | 5,939,704 | 5,808,110 | |
| Cash and cash equivalents at end of year | \$ | 5,891,385 | \$ 5,939,704 | |
| | | | | |
| Income taxes paid | <u>\$</u> | 10,527,235 | \$ 5,421,022 | |
| | | | | |

See accompanying notes.

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2015

1. Organization

Organization and Nature of Business

Spectrum Asset Management, Inc. (the Company) is a registered investment advisor, broker-dealer, and commodity trading advisor. The Company is a member of the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority (FINRA), providing investment management and security investment brokerage for institutional clients. The Company is also a manager of domestic investment portfolios for corporate, government, and mutual fund clients. The Company primarily specializes in the management of fixed-rate preferred stocks and cash. To minimize principal fluctuations, the Company uses its proprietary hedging strategy to establish a cross-hedge with U.S. Treasury futures. The derivative instruments are entered into by the Company's clients and are not reported in the financial statements of the Company. The Company clears its securities transactions on a fully disclosed basis through JP Morgan Clearing Corp. (JPMCC).

The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Principal Global Investors, LLC (Principal Global). Principal Global is a wholly owned subsidiary of Principal Life Insurance Company (Principal Life). Principal Life is a wholly owned subsidiary of Principal Financial Services, Inc. (PFSI). PFSI is a wholly owned subsidiary of Principal Financial Group (PFG).

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investments with maturities of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents. The Company holds cash on deposit with JPMCC in order to continue to do business with JPMCC. The amounts held on deposit with JPMCC were \$303,282 and \$303,282 as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. The Company holds its cash in bank accounts with balances in excess of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation deposit insurance limits.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of income and expenses during the reporting period. It is possible that actual experience could differ from the estimates and assumptions utilized.

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Fixed Assets

Fixed assets are comprised of furniture and equipment and leasehold improvements. Furniture and equipment are recorded at cost and are depreciated using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives, which range from three to ten years. Additions and major renewals are capitalized. Maintenance, repairs, and minor renewals are expensed as incurred. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the shorter of their estimated useful lives or the term of the lease.

Revenue Recognition

The majority of the Company's revenues are derived from fees for investment management services provided to institutional and other clients. During 2015, 44% of the Company's revenues were derived from two unaffiliated customers. During 2014, 52% of the Company's revenues were derived from four unaffiliated customers. Investment management fees are generally a function of the overall fee rate charged to each account and the level of assets under management by the Company. Assets under management can be affected by the addition of new client accounts or client contributions to existing accounts, withdrawals of assets from or terminations of client accounts, and investment performance, which may depend on general market conditions. Investment management fees and brokerage commissions are accrued over the period in which services are performed.

Subsequent Events

The Company has evaluated subsequent events through the date that the financial statements were issued.

Income Taxes

The Company is taxed as a division of Principal Life at corporate rates based on existing tax laws. Current income taxes are charged or credited to operations based upon amounts estimated to be payable or recoverable as a result of taxable operations for the current year. Deferred income taxes are provided for the tax effect of temporary differences in the financial reporting and income tax basis of assets and liabilities and net operating losses using enacted income tax rates and laws. The effect on deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in operations in the period in which the change is enacted.

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Future Adoption of New Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued ASU 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606) (ASU 2014-09), which requires an entity to recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Revenue is recognized when, or as, the entity satisfies a performance obligation under the contract. The standard also requires disclosures regarding the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from contracts with customers.

In August 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-14 to amend the effective date of ASU 2014-09 to fiscal years, and interim periods within those fiscal years, beginning after December 15, 2017. Early adoption is permitted as of the original effective date, which is January 1, 2017. The provisions of ASU 2014-09 are effective retrospectively. The Company is currently in the process of determining the impact of adoption of the provisions of ASU 2014-09.

3. Fixed Assets

| | December 31 | | | |
|--|-------------|--------------|-------------|--|
| • | | 2015 | 2014 | |
| Fixed assets consisted of the following: | | | | |
| Furniture and equipment and leasehold improvements | \$ | 1,305,774 \$ | 1,292,724 | |
| Less accumulated depreciation and amortization | | (1,158,039) | (1,063,520) | |
| | \$ | 147,735 \$ | 229,204 | |

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

4. Leases

As of December 31, 2015, future minimum rentals under capital and operating leases for office space and certain equipment that have initial or non-cancelable lease terms in excess of one year are as follows:

| 2016 2017 | 292,299 259,830 |
|--------------|--------------------|
| 2018 | 259,830 262,530 |
| 2019 | 200,700 |
| | \$ 1,015,359 |

Rent expense for 2015 and 2014 totaled \$278,563 and \$269,640, respectively.

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

5. Income Taxes

Income Tax Expense

The Company's taxable income or loss is generally included in the consolidated income tax return filed by PFG, the Company's ultimate parent.

PFG has adopted the policy of allocating income tax expense and benefits to members of its consolidated group based upon their pro rata contribution of taxable income or loss. The Company paid taxes of \$10,527,235 and \$5,421,022 during 2015 and 2014, respectively.

Our income tax expense (benefit) was as follows:

| | For the year ended December 3 2015 2014 | | | |
|--|---|------------------------|----|--------------------------|
| Current income taxes (benefits): U.S. federal State | \$ | 7,450,629 409,317 | \$ | 7,034,766 382,486 |
| Total current income taxes (benefits) Deferred income taxes (benefits) | | 7,859,946 | | 7,417,252 |
| U.S. federal | \$ | (297,428) | \$ | (1,136,907) |
| State | _ | (17,343) | _ | (66,292) |
| Total deferred income taxes (benefits) Total income taxes | \$ | (314,771) 7,545,175 | \$ | (1,203,199) 6,214,053 |

The effective tax rate for 2015 and 2014 is higher than the U.S. statutory rate primarily due to state income taxes partially offset by amortization of goodwill recorded for income tax purposes.

Effective Income Tax Rate

The Company's provision for income taxes may not have the customary relationship of taxes to income. Reconciliation between the U.S. corporate income tax rate and the effective income tax rate is as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

5. Income Taxes (continued)

| | For the year ended December 31, | | |
|--------------------------------|---------------------------------|--------|--|
| | 2015 | 2014 | |
| U.S. corporate income tax rate | 35.0 % | 35.0 % | |
| State tax | 1.2 | 1.2 | |
| Goodwill | (0.5) | (0.6) | |
| Effective income tax rate | 35.7 % | 35.6 % | |

Unrecognized Tax Benefits

The amount of unrecognized tax benefits calculated for the Company as of December 31, 2015 and 2014 is not material to the Company's financial position. Therefore, the total amount of unrecognized tax benefits, that if recognized, would affect the effective income tax rate is immaterial. The Company recognizes interest expense and penalties related to income taxes in operating expenses. The Company recognized no accumulated pre-tax interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits in 2015 and 2014.

We do not believe there is a reasonable possibility that the total amount of unrecognized tax benefits will significantly increase or decrease in the next twelve months.

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

5. Income Taxes (continued)

Net Deferred Income Taxes

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes. Significant components of our net deferred income taxes were as follows:

| | December 31, | | | | |
|---------------------------------------|--------------|-----------|----|--------------|--|
| | | 2015 | | 2014 | |
| Deferred income tax assets: | | | | | |
| Deferred compensation | \$ | 1,413,424 | \$ | 1,144,742 | |
| Employee benefits | | 139,973 | | 122,575 | |
| Other deferred income tax assets | | 205,029 | | 176,338 | |
| Total deferred income tax assets | | 1,758,426 | | 1,443,655 | |
| Deferred income tax liabilities: | | | | | |
| Other deferred income tax liabilities | | _ | | - | |
| Total deferred income tax liabilities | | _ | | _ | |
| Total net deferred income tax assets | \$ | 1,758,426 | \$ | 1,443,655 | |

In management's judgment, total deferred income tax assets are more likely than not to be realized.

Other Tax Information

The Internal Revenue Service (IRS) has completed its examinations of all tax years prior to 2009. PFG filed claims for refund for tax years 2004 and 2005 during 2012 and for tax years 2006 through 2008 in 2015. The IRS commenced audit of PFG's federal income tax return for 2009 during the fourth quarter of 2011, for 2010 during the first quarter of 2012, for 2011 during the first quarter of 2013 and for 2012 in the third quarter of 2015. PFG and the Company do not expect the results of these audits or developments in other tax areas for all open tax years to significantly change the possible increase in the amount of unrecognized tax benefits, but the outcome of tax reviews is uncertain and unforeseen results can occur.

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

6. Related-Party Transactions

The Company provides investment and advisory services to funds managed by affiliates with fees totaling \$15,722,613 and \$14,168,499 in 2015 and 2014, respectively.

The Company reimburses Principal Global for employees' services and certain other operating costs, which are provided or initially paid by Principal Global and totaled \$22,637,468 and \$20,541,098 in 2015 and 2014, respectively.

7. Regulatory Requirements

The Company is subject to the Securities and Exchange Commission Uniform Net Capital Rule (Rule 15c3-1), which requires the maintenance of minimum net capital and requires that the ratio of aggregate indebtedness to net capital, both as defined therein, shall not exceed 15 to 1. At December 31, 2015, the Company had defined net capital of \$4,372,518, which was \$4,124,399 in excess of its required minimum net capital of \$248,119. At December 31, 2015, the Company's ratio of aggregate indebtedness to net capital was .85 to 1. Various other regulatory agencies may impose additional capital requirements.

The Company is exempt from maintaining a special reserve bank account under Rule 15c3-3(k)(2)(ii).

Supplementary Information

Schedule I –Computation of Net Capital Under SEC Rule 15c3-1

December 31, 2015

| 1. Total ownership equity from statement of financial condition | \$ 9,595,066 |
|--|---------------|
| 2.Deduct ownership equity not allowable for net capital | |
| 3. Total ownership equity qualified for net capital | 9,595,066 |
| 4.Add: | |
| A. Liabilities subordinated to claims of general creditors allowable in computation of net capital | |
| B. Other (deductions) or allowable credits | 2,238,397 |
| 5. Total capital and allowable subordinated liabilities | \$ 11,833,463 |
| 6.Deductions and/or charges: | |
| A. Total nonallowable assets from statement of financial condition | |
| (Notes B and C) | \$ 7,460,945 |
| B. Secured demand note deficiency | |
| C. Commodity futures contracts and spot commodities – proprietary | |
| capital charges | |
| D. Other deductions and/or charges | |
| 7.Other additions and/or allowable credits | |
| 8.Net capital before haircuts on securities positions | 4,372,518 |
| 9. Haircuts on securities (computed, where applicable, pursuant to 15c3-1(f)): | |
| A. Contractual securities commitments | |
| B. Subordinated securities borrowings | |
| C. Trading and investment securities: | , |
| 1.Exempted securities | |
| 2.Debt securities | |
| 3.Options | |
| 4. Other securities | |
| D. Undue concentration | |
| E. Other | • |
| 10. Net capital | \$ 4,372,518 |

Schedule I – Computation of Net Capital Under SEC Rule 15c3-1 (continued)

Computation Basic of Net Capital Requirement

| \$ 248,119 |
|--------------|
| |
| |
| 5,000 |
| 248,119 |
| 4,124,399 |
| 4,000,339 |
| |
| 3,721,786 |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| \$ 3,721,786 |
| |
| 85.12% |
| |
| 0.00 |
| |

Notes

- (A) The minimum net capital requirement should be computed by adding the minimum dollar net capital requirement of the reporting broker-dealer and, for each subsidiary to be consolidated, the greater of:
 - 1. Minimum dollar net capital requirement, or
 - 2. 6 2/3% of aggregate indebtedness or 4% of aggregate debits if alternative method is used.
- (B) Do not deduct the value of securities borrowed under subordination agreements or secured demand notes covered by subordination agreements not in satisfactory form and the market

Schedule I – Computation of Net Capital Under SEC Rule 15c3-1 (continued)

values of memberships in exchanges contributed for use of company (contra to Item 1740) and partners' securities that were included in non-allowable assets.

(C) For reports filed pursuant to paragraph (d) of Rule 17a-5, respondent should provide a list of material non-allowable assets.

There are no differences between the computation of net capital under Rule 15c3-1, which is included in this audited report, and the computation of net capital in the company's corresponding, unaudited Focus Report (Form X-17A-5, Part IIA) filing submitted to FINRA as of December 31, 2015.

Schedule II –Computation for Determination of the Reserve Requirements Under Exhibit A of SEC Rule 15c3-3

December 31, 2015

Computation for Determination of Reserve Requirements Pursuant to Rule 15c3-3:

Exemptive Provision

| 22. If an exemption from Rule 15c3-3 is claimed, identify below the section upon which such exemption is based (check one only): | |
|--|---|
| A. $(k)(1)$ – Limited business (mutual funds and/or | |
| variable annuities only) | |
| B. $(k)(2)(i)$ – "Special Account for the Exclusive | |
| Benefit of Customers" maintained | |
| C. (k)(2)(ii) – All customer transactions cleared through | |
| another broker-dealer on a fully-disclosed basis. Name of | |
| clearing firm: JP Morgan Clearing Corp. | X |
| D. $(k)(3)$ – Exempted by order of the Commission | |

Schedule III – Information Relating to the Possession or Control Requirements to SEC Rule 15c3-3

December 31, 2015

The Company is exempt from SEC Rule 15c3-3 as it relates to the possession and control requirements under paragraph (k)(2)(ii) of that Rule.



Ernst & Young LLP Suite 3000 801 Grand Avenue Des Moines, IA 50309-2764 Tel: +1 515 243 2727 Fax: +1 515 362 7200

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm on Applying Agreed-Upon Procedures

To the Board of Directors and Management of Spectrum Asset Management, Inc.:

We have performed the procedures enumerated below, which were agreed to by the Board of Directors and management of Spectrum Asset Management, Inc., the Securities Investor Protection Corporation (SIPC), the Securities and Exchange Commission, and the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority, in accordance with Rule 17a-5(e)(4) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. We performed the procedures solely to assist the specified parties in evaluating Spectrum Asset Management, Inc.'s compliance with the applicable instructions of the General Assessment Reconciliation (Form SIPC-7) for the fiscal period January 1, 2015 to December 31, 2015. Spectrum Asset Management, Inc.'s management is responsible for Spectrum Asset Management, Inc.'s compliance with those requirements. This agreed-upon procedures engagement was conducted in accordance with attestation standards established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The sufficiency of these procedures is solely the responsibility of those parties specified in this report. Consequently, we make no representation regarding the sufficiency of the procedures described below either for the purpose for which this report has been requested or for any other purpose.

The procedures we performed and our findings are as follows:

- 1. Compared the listed assessment payments in Form SIPC-7 with respective cash disbursement record entries, including a copy of the check or bank statement. There were no findings.
- 2. Compared the amounts reported on X-17A-5 with the amounts reported in Form SIPC-7 for the fiscal period January 1, 2015 to December 31, 2015. There were no findings.
- 3. Compared any adjustments reported in Form SIPC-7 with supporting schedules and working papers, including monthly revenue detail from the revenue sub-ledger. There were no findings.
- 4. Proved the arithmetical accuracy of the calculations reflected in Form SIPC-7 and in the related supporting schedules and working papers supporting the adjustments. There were no findings.



We were not engaged to and did not conduct an examination, the objective of which would be the expression of an opinion on compliance with the applicable instructions of the General Assessment Reconciliation (Form SIPC-7) for the fiscal period January 1, 2015 to December 31, 2015. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. Had we performed additional procedures, other matters might have come to our attention that would have been reported to you.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the specified parties listed above and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Eunot + Young LLP

February 24, 2016



Ernst & Young LLP Suite 3000 801 Grand Avenue Des Moines, IA 50309-2764 Tel: +1 515 243 2727 Fax: +1 515 362 7200

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors
Spectrum Asset Management, Inc.

We have reviewed management's statements, included in the accompanying Spectrum Asset Management Inc.'s Exemption Report, in which (1) Spectrum Asset Management Inc. (the Company) identified the following provisions of 17 C.F.R. § 15c3-3(k) under which the Company claimed an exemption from 17 C.F.R. § 240.15c3-3: (2)(ii) and (2) the Company stated that it met the identified exemption provisions throughout the period from January 1, 2015 through December 31, 2015 without exception. Management of the Company is responsible for compliance with the exemption provisions and its statements.

Our review was conducted in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) and, accordingly, included inquiries and other required procedures to obtain evidence about the Company's compliance with the exemption provisions. A review is substantially less in scope than an examination, the objective of which is the expression of an opinion on management's statements. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.

Based on our review, we are not aware of any material modifications that should be made to management's statements referred to above for them to be fairly stated, in all material respects, based on the provisions set forth in paragraph (k)(2)(ii) of Rule 15c3-3 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors, management, the SEC, FINRA, and other regulatory agencies that rely on Rule 17a-5 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 in their regulation of registered brokers and dealers, and other recipients specified by Rule 17a-5(d)(6) and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Emit + young LLP

February 24, 2016



Spectrum Asset Management Inc.'s Exemption Report

Spectrum Asset Management, Inc. (the "Company") is a registered broker-dealer subject to Rule 17a-5 promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission (17 C.F.R. §240.17a-5, "Reports to be made by certain brokers and dealers"). This Exemption Report was prepared as required by 17 C.F.R. § 240.17a-5(d)(1) and (4). To the best of its knowledge and belief, the Company states the following:

- (1) The Company claimed an exemption from 17 C.F.R. § 240.15c3-3 under the following provisions of 17 C.F.R. § 240.15c3-3 (k)(2)(ii) All customer transactions are cleared through another broker-dealer on a fully disclosed basis.
- (2) The Company met the identified exemption provisions in 17 C.F.R. § 240.15c3-3(k) throughout the period from January 1, 2015 through December 31, 2015 without exception.

Spectrum Asset Management, Inc.

I, Jean Orlando, affirm that, to my best knowledge and belief, this Exemption Report is true and correct.

Title: Chief Financial Officer

Date: 72-24-16

SEC Mail Processing Section FEB 292016

Washington DC 413

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Spectrum Asset Management, Inc. Years Ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 With Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm